STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

COMMISSIONER

TDD Access: Relay NH
Jared 8. Chicaine

1-800-735-2964

Tel. (603) 271-3670
DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

Christopher J. Ellms, Jr. FAX No. 271-1526

Website:”

DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY www.enezrgy.nh.gov

21 S. Fruit 8¢, Suite 10
Concord, N.H. 03301-2429

September 25, 2024
His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
State House
Concord, New Hampshire 03301
REQUESTED ACTION

1) Authorize the New Hampshire Department of Energy (Department) to enter into a SOLE
SOURCE contract with Community Action Program Belknap and Merrimack Counties, Inc.,
Concord, NH, Vendor #177203, in the amount of $4,437,647 for the Fuel Assistance Program
effective upon Govenor and Executive Council approval through September 30, 2026. 100%
Federal Funds.

Funds to support this request are available in the following account in FY 2025 upon the availability
and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget:

New Hampshire Department of Energy, Fuel Assistance FY 2025
02-52-52-520510-33540000-074-500587

Grants for Pub Assist & Relief . $4,437,647
2) Further request authorization to advance Community Action Program Belknap and

Merrimack Counties, Inc. $36,592 from the above-referenced contract amount.

EXPLANATION

This contract is SOLE SOURCE based on historical performance of the Community Action
Agencies (CAA) in the New Hampshire Fuel Assistance Program (FAP), their outreach and client
service capabilities, the synergies that benefit the FAP as a result of the five statewide CAAs’
implementation of several other federal assistance programs, and the infrastructure that is already in
place to deliver FAP services. The Department proposes to continue to subcontract with the five
CAAs who have successfully provided FAP services at the local level for more than three decades.
The CAAs work closely with Department’s FAP Administrator in the implementation of the program.

FAP is a statewide program, funded by a Federal Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program
(LIHEAP) Block Grant, and works to make home energy more affordable for income-qualified New
Hampshire families, including those who are elderly or disabled. Program funds are targeted to low-
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income households with high energy burdens. The current maximum income level is 60% of the State
Median Income (SMI), which is $87,949 per year for a family of four. The average FAP benefit
during the last program year was $1,284. The program operates on an October 1* through September
30% program year.

The proposed advance of funds will enable the CAA to operate the program between monthly
reimbursements from the State.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be requested
to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

o’

Jared S. Chicoine
Commissioner



FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 2/23/2023)

Notice: This agreenient and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and

Executive Council for approval, Any information that i3 private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified (o the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

: AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and thé Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:
GENERAL PROVISIONS
1. SDENTIFICATION.
1.1 State Agency Name 1.2 State Agency Address
Department of Energy 21 8. Fruit St., Ste. 10, Concord, NH 03301
1.3 Contractor Name i.4 Contractor Address
Community Action Program Belknap and Merrimack Counties, _
Inc. 8 Old Suncook Road, PO Box 1016, Concord, NH 03302
1.5 Contractor Phone 1.6 Account Unit and Class 1.7 Completion Date 1.8 Price Limitation
Numbec
{603) 225-3205 33540000-074 09/30/2026 $4.437,647
1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency 1.1 State Agency Telephone Nunber
Leah Richards, Fuel Assistance Program Administrator - (603) 271-3670

I.I@mmaur Signature , .12 Name and Title of Contractor Signalory

( LW %’\1;[\' Date:e_ag-aog\' Jeanne Agri, Executive Director

Tate Agency dre

1.14 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

v Date; 8 / / Jared S. Chicoine, Commissioner

.

ppraval by the N.H, Depaﬁment of Administration, Division of Personnel (if applicabls) -

By: . Director, On:

mey.General {Form, Substance and Execution) {if applicable)
on 9/6/2024

.16 Approval by the

By;

1.17 Approval by the Gavernor and Executive Councll (if applicable)

G&C ltera number: G&C Meeting Date:
LIHEAP25 CAPBM P37 Form
Award Nos.GISOINHLlEA; Award Date; 10/1/2024 : I niﬁalsg&_ Daﬁé&aﬁlq
ALN#93 568
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2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The State of New
Hampshire, acting through the agency identitied in block 1.1 (“State™),
engages contractor identified in block 1.3.(“Contractor™) to perform.
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods. or both,
identitied and more particularly described in the attached EXHIBIT B
which js incorporated herein by reference (“Services™).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement 10 the contrary,
and subfect to the approval of the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire, if applicable, this Agreement, and all
obligations ofthe parties hereunder, shall become effective on the date
the Governor and Executive Council approve this Agreement, unless
no such approval is vequired, in which case the Agreement shall
become effective on the date the Agreement is signed by the State
Agency as shown in block 1.13 (“Effective Date™).

3.2 1f the Contractor commences the Services prior to the Elfective
Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior to the Effective
Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the Contractor, and in (he
event that this Agreement does not become effective, the State shall
have no liability to the Contractor, including without limitation, any
obligation 1o pay the Conlractor for any costs incurred or Services
performed.

3.3 Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all
obligations of the State hereunder, including, without limitation, the
continuance of payments hereunder, are contingent upon the
availability and continued appropriationof funds. In no event shall the
State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of such available
appropriated funds. In the evem of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds by any state or lfederal legislative or executive
action that reduces, eliminales or otherwise modifizs the appropriation
or availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope for
Services provided in EXFUIBIT B, in whole or in part, the State shall
have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available,
if ever, and shall have the right to reduce or terminate the Services
under this Agreement immediately upon giving the Contractor notice
of such reduction or termination. The State shall not be required to
transfer funds filom any other account or source to the Account
. identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that Account are reduced
or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/ PAYMENT.

3.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of payment are
identitied and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C which is
incorporated herein by reference,

5.2 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the contrary,
and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no event shall the
total of all payments authorized, or actually made hereunder, exceed
the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8, The payment by the State
. ofthe contract price shall be the only and the complete reimbursement
to the Contractor for all expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the
Contractor in the performance hereof, and shall be the only and the
complete compensation to the Contractor {or the Services.

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts otherwise
payable to the Contractor under this Agreement those liguidated
amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA 80:7 through RSA 80:7-c
or any other provision of-law.

LIHEAP25 CAPBM
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3.4 The State’s liability under this Agreement shall be limited 1o
monetary damages not to exceed the total fees paid. The Contractor
agrees that it has an adequate remedy at law for any breach of this
Agreementl by the State and hereby waives any right to specific
performance or other equitable remedies against the State.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS/EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY.
6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the Contractot
shall comply with all applicable slatutes, laws, regulations, and orders
of federal, state, county or municipal authorities which impose any
obligation or duty upon the Contractor. including. but not limited to.
civil rights and equal employment opportunity laws and the
Governor’s order on Respect and Civility in the Workplace. Executive
order 2020-01. In addition, if this Agreement is funded in any part by
monies of the United Stales, the Contractor shall comply with all
[ederal executive orders, rules. regulations and statutes, and with any
rules, regulations and guidelines as the State or the United States issuc
lo implement these regulations. The Contractor shall also comply with
all applicable intellectual property laws.

6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall not
discriminate against employees or applicants for employmen! because
of age. sex, sexual orientation. race, color, marital status. physical or
mental disability, religious creed, national origin, gender identity, or

" gender expression, and will take affirmative action to prevent such

discrimination, unless exempt by state or [ederal law. The Contractor
shall ensure any subcontractors comply with these nondiscrimination
requirements.

6.3 No payments or transfers of value by Contractor or its
representatives in conncction with this Agreement have or shall be
made which have thc purpose or effect of public or commercial
bribery, or acceptance of or acquiescence in extortion, kickbacks, or
other unlawful or improper means of obtaining business.

6.4. The Contraclor agrees to permit the State or United Stales access
to any of the Contractor’s books, records and accounts for the purpose
of ascertaining compliance with this Agreement and all rules,
regulations and orders pertaining to the covenants. terms and
conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all personnel
necessary to perform the Scrvices. The Contractor warrants that all
personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified to perform the
Services, and shall be properly licensed and otherwise authorized (o
do so under all applicable laws.

7.2 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or any successor.
shall be the State’s point of conlact pertaining to this Agreement.

8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hercunder (“Event of
Default™):

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on schedule;
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; andfor

8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition of this
Agreement.

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may take
any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:

8.2.1 give the Contractor a wrillen notice specifying the Event of
Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the abscnce of a
greater or lesser specification of time, thirty {30) calendar days {rom
the date of the notice; and if'the Event of Deflault is not timely cured,

Initials
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terminate this Agreement, effective two (2) calendar-days after giving
the Contractor notice ¢f termination;

8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice. specifying the Event of
Default and suspending.all payments to be made under this Agrecment
and ordering. that the portion of the contract price which would
otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the period fram the date of
such notice until such time as the State determines that the Contractor
has curéd the Event of Default shall never be paid 1o (he Contractor;
8.2.3 give the Contractor a written notice specilying the Event of
Default and set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any Event
of Default; and/or

8.2.4 give the Contractor a written notice specilying the Event of
Default. treat the Agreement as breached, terminate the Agreement
and pursue any of its remedies a1 law or in equity, or both,

9. TERMINATION., :

9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8, the Stale may, at its sole discretion,
terminate: the Agreement for any reason, in whole or in part, by thirty
(30) calendar days writlen notice to the Conlractor that the State is
exercising ils option to terminate the Agreement.

9.2 In the event of an early termination of this Agreement for any
reason other than the completion of the Services, the Contractor shall,
at the State's discretion, deliver 10 the Contracting Officer, not latér
than fifteen {13) calendar days afler the date of termination, a report
(" Termination Repert”) describing in detail all Services performed,
and the contract price earned, to and including the date of termination.
Inaddition, at the State’s discretion, the Contractor shall, within fiflcen
(15) calendar days of notice of early termination, develop and submit
to the Stale a transition plan for Services under the Agreement.

10. PROPERTY OWNERSHIP/DISCLOSURE.
10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “Property™ shall mean all
data, information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reporis, files,
[ormulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video recordings,
pictorial reproduclions, drawings, analyses, graphic representations,
compuler programs, compuler printouts, notes, letters, memoranda,
papers. and documents, all whether finished or unfinished.
10.2 All data and any Property which has been received from the State,
#~or purchased with funds provided for that purpose under this
Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and shall be returned Lo
the State upon demand or upon termination of this Agreement for any
reason.
10.3 Disclosure of data. information and other records shall be
governed by N.H. RSA chapter 91-A and/or other applicable law.
Disclosure requires prior written approval of the State.

11, CONTRACTOR’S RELATION TO THE STATE. [n the
performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all respects an
independent contractor. and is neither an agent nor an employee of the-
State, Neither the Contractor nor any of its officers, employees, agents
or members shall have authority to bind (he Siate or receive any
benefits, workers™ compensation or othen emoluments provided by the
State.to its'employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.

12.1 Contractor shall provide the Staie written notice at least fifieen
(15) calendar days before: any proposcd assignmenl. delegation, or
other transfer of any interest in this Agreement. No such assignment,

LIMEAP25 CAPBM
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delegation, or other transfer shall be effective without Lhe wrillen
consent of the State.

12.2 For purposes of paragraph 12, a Change. of Control shall
constitue  assignment. “Change of -Control”™ means (a) merger,
consolidation, or a transaction or series of related transactions in which
a third party, together with its affiliates. becomes the direct or indirect
owner of fifty percent (50%) or more of the voting shares or similay

equity interests, or combined voting power of the. Contractor, or (b)the *

sale of all-or substantially alf of the assets of thé Contractot.

12.3 None of the Services shall be subcontracted by the Contractor
without prior written notice and censent of the State,

12.4 The State is entitled to copies of all subcontracts and assignmenl
agreements and shall not be bound by any provisions contained.in a
subcontract or an assigninent agreement lo which it is not a party,

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall indemnify, defend,
and bold harmless the Siate, its officers, and employees flom and
against all actions. claims, damages, demands, judgments, fines,
liabilities, losses, and other expenses. inciuding, without iimitation,

‘reasonable attorneys’ fees, arising out of or relating to this Agreement

directly or indirectly arising lrom death, personal injury, property
damage. intellectual property infringement, or other claims asserted
against the State, its officers, or employees caused by the acts or
omissions of ncgligence. reckless or willful misconduct, or fraud by
the Contractor, ils employees, agents. or subcontractors.. The. State
shall not be liabte for any costs incurred by the Conlractor avising
under this paragraph 13. Notwithstanding the loregoing, nothing
herein-contained shall be deemed 10 constitute a waiver of the State's
sovereign imnunity, which immunity is hereby reserved to the State.
This covenant in paragraph 13 shall survive the termination of this
Agreement.

14, INSURANCE,

14.1 The Centraclor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and continuously
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or assignce o
obtain and matntain in force, the lollowmg insurance:

i4.1.1 commercial general liability insurance against all claims of
bedily injury, death or property damage, in amounis of not less than
$1,000.000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate or excess: and
14,1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all Property
subject lo subparagraph 10.2 herein, in an amount not less than 80%
of the whole replacement value of the Property.

14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14,1 herein shall be on
policy forms and endorsements approved for use‘in the State of New
Hampshire by the N.H. Department of Insurance, and issued by
insurers licensed in the State of New Hampshire.

14.3 The.Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer identitied
in block 1.9, or any successor, 2 centificate(s} of insurance for all
insurance required under this Agreement. At the requesi of the
Contracting Officer, or any successor, the Contractor shall provide
certificate(s) of insurance for afl renewal(s) of insurance required
under this Agreement. The certificate(s) of insurance and any renewals
thereof shall be attached and are incorporated herein by reference.

15. WORKERS® COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees, certifies and
warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with or exempt froim, the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A  (“Workers'
Compensation™),

15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject lo the requirements of
N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall maintain, and require any
subconlractor or assigneeto secure and maintain, payment of Workers®

P3§ Forin
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Compensation in connection with activities which theperson proposes
to undertake pursuant 10 this Agreement. The Contractor shall furnish
the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9: or any successoz, proof
of Workers® Compénsation in the manner described in N.H. RSA
chapter 281-A and any applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not
be responsible for paymentof any Workers' Compensation premiums
orfor any other claim or bencfit for Centractor, or any subcontractor
or employce of Contractor, which might arise under applicable State
of New Hampshire Workers’ Compensation laws in connection with
the performance of the Services under this Agreement,

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. A State’s failure to enforce its righis
with respecl to any single or continuing breach’of this Agreement shall
not act as 2 waiver of the right of the State to later enlorce any such
rights or to enforce any other or any subsequent breach.

17. NOTICE. Any noticeby a party hereto to the other parly shall be
deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the time of mailing by

certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United States Post Office..

addressed to the parties af the addresses given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4,
herein,  ° ’ -

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived or
discharged only by an instrument in writing signed by the parties
hereto and only atter approval of'such amendment, waiver ordischarge
by the Governor and Executive Council of the Stateof New Hampshire
unless no such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant
to Srate law. rule or pelicy.

19. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM.

19.1 This Agreement shall be governed, interpreted and construed in
aceordance with the {aws of the State of New Hampshire except where
the Federal supremacy clause requires otherwise. The wording used
in'this Agreement is the wording chosen by the parties to express their

mutual intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or in.

favor of any party. .
19.2 Any actions arising out of this Agreement, including 1he breach
or alleged breach thereof, may not be submilted to binding arbitration,

LTHEAP25 CAPBM
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buit must, instead, be brought and maintained in the Merrimack County
Superior Court of New Hampshire: which shall have exclusive
jurisdiction thereof, . ‘

20. CONFLICTING TERMS. In the event of a conflict between the
terins- of this P37 form {as modified in EXHIBIT A) and any other
portion of this Agreement including any attachments thercto, the terms
of the P-37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shail control.

21. THIRD PARTIES, This Agreement is being entered into for the
sole benefit of the parties hereto, and nothing heréin, express or
implied, is intended 1o or will confer any legal or equitable right,
benefit, or rtemedy of any nature upon any other person.

22. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are for
reference purposes only, and the words contained thesein shall in no
way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the interpretation,
construction or meaning of the provisions of this Agreement.

23, SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying provisions
set forth in the attached EXHIBIT A arc incorporated herein by
reference,

24. FURTHER ASSURANCES. The Contractor, along with ils
agents and alfiliates, shall, at its own cost and expense, execute any
additional documents and take such fuither actions as may be

reasonably required to carry out the provisions of this Agreement and

give effect to the transactions contemplated hereby.

25. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of this
Agreement are held by a court ol competent jurisdiction to be contrary
to any state or federal law, the remaining provisions of this Agreement
will remain in full force and effect,

26, ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agréement, which may be
executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall be deemed
an original, constitutes thc entire agreement and understanding
between the parties, and supersedes all prior agreeménls and
understandings with respect tc the subject matter hereof.

P37 Form
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EXHIBIT A

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

1. On or before the date set forth in Block 1.7 of the General Provisions, the Grantee shall
deliver to the State an independent audit of the Grantee's entire agency by a qualified
independent auditor in good standing with the state and federal government.

2. This audit shall be conducted in accordance with the audit requirements of Office of
Management and Budget {OMB) Circular 2 CFR200, Subpart F- Audit Requirements.
The Fuel Assistance Program (FAP) shall be considered a "major program™ for purposes
of this audit.

3. This audit report shall include a schedule of revenues and expenditures by contract or
grant number of all expenditures during the Grantee’s fiscal year. The Grantee shall
utilize a competitive bidding process to choose a qualified financial auditor at least every
four years.

4. The audit report shall include a schedule of prior years’ questioned costs along with the
Grantee’s response to the current status of the prior years’ questioned costs. Copies of all
OMB letters written as a result of audits shall be forwarded to New Hampshire
Departiment of Energy (Department). The audit shall be forwarded to the Department
within one month of the time of receipt by the Grantee, accompanied by an action plan
for each finding or questioned cost.

5. Delete the following from paragraph 10 of the General Provisions: “The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination Report shall be identical to
those of any Final Report described in Exhibit A.”

6. The costs charged under this contract shall be determined as allowable under the cost
principles detailed in 2 CFR 200 Subpart E — Cost Principles.

7. Program and financial records pertaining to this contract shall be retained by the Grantee
for three years from the date of submission of the final expenditure report per 2 CFR
200.334 — Retention Requirements for Records and until all audit firidings have been
resolved.

8. In accordance with Public Law 103-333, the “Departments of l;abor, Health and Human
Services, and Education, and Related Agencies Appropriations Act of 1995, the
following provisions are applicable to this grant award:

a. Section 507: “Purchase of American-Made Equipment and Products — It is the
sense of the Congress that, to the greatest extent practicable, all equipment and
products purchased with funds made available in this Act should be American-
made,”

Award No. 250INHLIEA: Award Date: 10//2024 Exhibit A, B, C
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Community Action Program Belknap and Metrimack Counties, Inc. Page | of 4



b. Section 508: “When issuing statements, press releases, requests for proposals, bid
solicitations and other documents describing projects or programs funded in
whole or in part with federal money, all states receiving federal funds, including
but not limited to state and local goverriments and recipients of federal research
grants, shall clearly state (1) the percentage of the total costs of the program or
project which will be financed with federal money, (2) the dollar amount of
federal funds for the project or program, and (3) the percentage and dollar amount
of the total costs of the project or program that will be financed by non-
governmental sources.” '

9. CLOSE OUT OF CONTRACT. All final required reports and reimbursement requests
shall be submitted to the State within 30 days of the completion date (Agreement Block
1.7).

10.  ADVANCES. Advance funds must be used solely for appropriate Fuel Assistance
Program expenditures. Advance program funds are to be used only for Fuel Assistance
Program vendor payments. All Fuel Assistance Program payments, including Advance
program payments, must be transferred from the Community Action Agency’s (CAA’s)
general operating account into a specific Fuel Assistance Program account within 48
hours after being received electronically from the State. CAAs must submit the bank
account number of the designated bank account for the advance funds to the Department
prior to the electronic submission of the funds to the CAA. Unspent Advance program
funds must remain In the FAP dedicated account at all times and cannot be comingled
with any other CAA funds: CAAs are required to submit a complete electronic copy of
the FAP-dedicated bank account statement to the Department on a monthly basis.

1. This is not a Research and Development (R&D) award. The Department indirect cost rate is
25.14 percent. :

Award No. 250INHLIEA; Award Date: 10/1/2024 Exhibit A, B, C
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EXHIBIT B

SCOPE OF SERVICES

Community Action Program Belknap and Merrimack Counties, Inc., hereinafter the Grantee,
agrees to provide Fuel Assistance Program services to qualified low-income individuals and
agrees to perform all such services and other work necessary to operate the Program in
accordance with the requirements of this contract, the principles and objectives set forth in the
Fuel Assistance Program Policy and Procedures Manual, Information Memoranda, and other
guidance as determined by the Department.

FAP services will be defined to include the following categories:

1.

Outreach, eligibility, determination, and certification of FAP applicants;

2. Benefit payments directly to energy vendors:

3. Payments directly to landlords for renters who pay their energy costs as undefined
portions of their rent; ’

4, Payments directly to clients only when deemed appropriate and necessary as defined in
the Fuel Assistance Program Policy and Procedures Manual;

5. Emergency Assistance through expedited application and payment processing as outlined
in the Fuel Assistance Program Policy and Procedures Manual.

Award No. 250INHLIEA; Award Date: 10/1/2024 Exhibit A, B, C
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EXHIBIT C
PAYMENT TERMS

In consideration of the satisfactory performance of the services as determined by the State, the
State agrees to pay over to the Grantee the sum of $4,437,647 (which hereinafter is referred to as
the “Grant™).

Upon the State’s receipt of the 2025 Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program grant from
the US Departiment of Health and Human Services, and New Hampshire Governor and Executive
Counci! (Governor and Executive Council) approval, the following funds will be authorized:

LIHEAP PY2025 Funds: ’
$375,917 for administration costs, of which $36,592 wiil be issued as a cash advance;
$3,748,541 for program costs;
$156,189 for program support costs;
$157,000 for Assurance 16,

The dates for this contract are upon Governor and Council approval through September 30, 2026.

Authorization to spend (Exhibit I) the above-awarded funds will be provided in writing by the
Departiment to the Grantee as the Federal funds become available. Drawdowns from the balance
of funds will be made to the Grantee only after written documentation of cash need is submitted
to the State. Disbursement of the Grant shall be in accordance with procedures established by
the State as detailed in the Fuel Assistance Program Policy and Procedures Manual.

ALN Title: Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program
ALN No: 93.568

Award Name: Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program
Federal Agency: Health & Human Services

Administration for Children and Families
Office of Community Services

Award No. 250INHLIEA; Award Date: 10/1/2024 ExhibitA, B, C
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT D

The Grantee identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of Sections
5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.),
and further agrees to have the Grantee's representative, as identified in Sections 1.17 and 1.12 of the General
Provisions, execute the following Certification:

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS
ALTERNATIVEI - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - GRANTEES
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - GRANTEES
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - GRANTEES
US DEPARTMENT OF LABOR
USDEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace
Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S,C. 701 et seq.). The January 31, 1989 regulations were
amended and published as Part {I of the May 25, 1990 Fedeéral Register (pages 21681-21691), and require
certification by Grantee (and by inference sub-grantees and sub-contractor) prior to award that they will mairitain
a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the regulation provides that a Grantee (and by infereénce sub-
grantees and sub-contractor) that is a state may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal
fiscal year in lieu of certificates for each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification, The
certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the Agency
awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments,
suspension or termination of grants, or government-wide suspension or debarment. Grantees using this form
should send it to:

Fuel Assistance Administrator, New Hampshire Department ¢f Energy,
21 South Fruit St., Ste. 10, Concord, NH 03301

{A) The Grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

(a) Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession of or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the Grantee °s
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

(b)  Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about;

{1) the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

(2) the Grantee’s policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;

(3) any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and

4 the penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations occurring in
the workplace;

() Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be
given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

(d) Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the grant, the employee will

(N abide by the terms of the statement; and

Award No. 2501NHLIEA; Award Date; 10/1/2024 Exhibit D thry H
ALN No. 93.568 : Iuitialsq&m Datey: A0AY
Community Acticn Program Belknap and Metrimack Counties, Inc. Page 1 of 7



CERTIFICATION-REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS
ALTERNATIVE 1 - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS, cont*d

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - GRANTEES
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - GRANTEES
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE ~ GRANTEES
US DEPARTMENT OF LABOR
US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

2 notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug
statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such conviction;

(e) Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph {d)(2) from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the federal agency
has designated a central peint for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;

(H Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of reéeiving notice under
subparagraph (d)(2), with respect to any employee who is so convicted:

N Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

2) Requiring such employee 1o participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a federal, state, or loca! heaith, law
enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

(g) Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through implementation
of paragraphs (a), (b), (¢), (d), (e), and ().

(B) The-Grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work dene in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.
8 Old Suncook Rd, Concord, NH 03301

Check [_]ifthere are workplaces on file that are not identified here.
Community Action Program

Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. i Upon G&C“Approval through September 30. 2026
Grantee Name Period covered by this Certification
Jeanne Agri Chief Executive Officer _
me and Title of Authorizgd Grantee Representative
AL AGHA 5232024
ant&? Representative ngﬁtun‘sﬁ Date
Award No., 2501NHLIEA; Award Date: 10/1/2024 Exhibit D thru H
ALN No. 93.568 Initials Date &5 004
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT E

The Grantee identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of Section
319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and 31 U.S.C. 1352,
and further agrees to have the Grantee’s representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General
Provisions, execute the following Certification:

CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - GRANTEES
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - GRANTEES
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - GRANTEES
US DEPARTMENT OF LABOR
US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
LIHEAP

Contract Period: Upon Gé&C approval to September 30, 2026

The undersigned certifies to the best of his or her knowledge and belief that:

4)) No federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any
person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of
Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection
with the awarding of any federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any
federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-
contractors),

(2) If any funds other than federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of Congress, an
officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection with this federal
contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-contractors),
the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, “Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying,”
in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E~I.

3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award document for
sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants, loans, and °
cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was
made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction
imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be
subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure.

Q?fﬁ ;“?‘LQ, i , Chief Executive Officer

rafifec Representdtive :E'sig}na'ture Grantee's Representative Title
Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimaek, Inc. 8-23-2024
Grantee Name Date
Award No. 250INHLIEA; Award Date: 10/1/2024 xhibit D thru H
ALN No. 93.568 nitials R Date3-2. S04
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT F

The Grantee identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of Executive
Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment, Suspensmn and Other
Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Grantee’s representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and

1.12 of the General Provisions, execute the following Certification:

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS - PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

Instructions for Certification

(1} By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.,

(2) The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial of
participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an-explanation
of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be considered in connection
with the NH Department of Energy (Department) determination whether to enter into this transaction.
However, failure of the prospective primary participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall
d:squallfy such person from participation in this transaction.

(3) The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when the
Department determined to enter into this transaction, If it is later determined that the: prospective primary
participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies available to the
federal government, the Department may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

(4) The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the Department agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns that its
certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed circumstances.

(5) The terms “covered transaction,” “debarred,” “suspended,” “ineligible,” “lower tier covered transaction,”
“participant,” “person,” “primary covered transaction,” “principal,” “proposal,” and “voluntarily excluded,”

. as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and Coverage sections of the rules
implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the attached definitions.

(6) The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that should the proposed
covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered transaction with
a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this
covered transaction, unless authorized by the Department.

{7) The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the clause
titled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier
Covered Transactions,” provided by the Department, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions. '

(8) A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a lower
tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded from the
covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous, A participant imay decide the method
and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each participant may, but is not
required to, check the Non-procurement List (of excluded parties).

{9 Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records in
order to render in good faith the cettification required by this clause. The knowledge and information of a
participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary
course of business dealings.

{10) Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these. instructions, if a participant in a covered
transaction knowingly enters into a Jower tier covered transaction with a person who is suspended, debarred,
ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in addition to other remedies
available to the federal government, the Department may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

Award No. 250INHLIEA; Award Date: 10/1/2024 xhibit D
ALN No. 93.568 Initi
Conimunity Action Program Belknap and Merrimack Counties, Inc. Page 4 of 7
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS - PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS, cont’d

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspesision, and Other
Responsibility Matters - Primary Covered Transactions

(0 The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals:

(a) are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily
excluded from covered transactions by any federal department or agency;

ts)] have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had a
civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or for a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (federal, stdte or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes
or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records,
making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

{c) are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(federal, state or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (1) (b) of
this certification; and

(d) have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
(federal, state or local) transactions terminated for cause or default.

(2) Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification,
such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions
(To Be Supplied to Lower Tier Participants)

By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as defined in
45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:

(a) are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily
excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.

b where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such
p
prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will include this
clause entitled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and Voluntary Exclusion - Lower
Tier Covered Transactions,” without modification in all lower tier-covered transactions and in all solicitations for
lower tier-covered transaions.

Q?..( w ‘A Chief Executive Officer
Wee Repr esenta}p/\Stgnai}Jre Grantee’s Representative Title

Commumty Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc, 8-23-2024

Grantee Name Date

Award No. 2501NHLIEA; Award Date: 10/1/2024 Exhibit D ¢ i H

ALN No, 93.568 lnmalsgﬁ_ Date -a024
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT G

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE
AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT COMPLIANCE

* The Grantee identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Grantee’s representative
as identified in Sections 1.11] and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following certification:

By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the Grantee agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply with
all applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990,

M j{\o ) _ Chief Executive Officer

raitee Representatlve/ 3 tgnat@: Grantee’s Representative Title
Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. §-23-2024
Grantee Name Date
Award No. 250INHLIEA; Award Date: 10/1/2024 Exhibit D thru H
ALN No. 93.568 Initials QY Dat 2oy
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY
STANDARD EXHIBIT H

CERTIFICATION
Public Law 103-227, Part C
ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103227, Part C Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro Children Act of 1994, requires
that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility routinely owned or leased or contracted for by
an entity and used routinely or regulariy for provision of health, day care, education, or library services to children
under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either directly or through State or local
governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee.

The law does not apply to children’s services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by Medicare
or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment.

Failure to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to.
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsibie entity.

By signing and submitting this application the applicant/ Grantee certifies that it will comply with the
requirements of the Act,

The applicant/Grantee further agrees that it will require the language of this certification be included in any sub
awards which contain provisions for the children’s services and that all Sub-Grantee shall certify accordingly.

W,(M\ Y\Q/J\( ja’y Chief Executive Officer

G nige Representatw/ Slgnatﬂ&e Grantee’s Representative Title
Commumty Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Ine, 8-23-2024
Grantee Name Date
Award No. 250INHLIEA; Award Date: 101/2024 Exhibit D thru H
ALN No. 93,568 Initlal Date a()

Community Action Program Belknap and Merrimack Counties, Inc. Page 70f7



Exhibit |

PY24 Fuel Assistance Program Authorization to Spend (aka Approval to Obligate}

TCCAP

SAMPLE ONLY CAPBM CAPSC " 58 SNHS = STATEWIDE
e annEuids ,
PY 23 Funds Remaining $ 66,6431 5 772,405 | § - 'S 42950354 5§ - S 5,134,083
Y 24 Funds Remaining $ 315725715 1,955,953 2,457048] § 7,013,005} 2498808 | $ 17.082,071
Additional PY 24 Funds Added on 8/7/24] $ 2417251 5 157,358 | 205,562 1 5 - 1s 271,582 1 5 880,627
TOTALAmount Authorized to Spend $ 3465625|5 2,88571615 2,667,010 % 1130804013 2,770,330 |'$ 23,056,781 |
Below - only Additional funds updated
B o :
PY 24 Funds Authorized 5 65,426 | $ 30524 | S 31,706 $ 72,365 1 5 + s wson
Additional PY 24 Funds Added 8/7/24 1§ 4,933 ] 5 321118 4,285 % - s - |8 12,429
TOTAL Amount Authorized to Spend | $ 70,359 1% 33735]% 359911 % 77,3651 5 - |3 217,450
PY 23 Funds Remaining $ 82,965 | § - |3 192,295 27,358 § 313443 | $ 616,102
PY 24 Funds Remaining $ 197,117 ] & 11,4071 3 176,023 1 $ 638,847 | § 315581 | 5 1,338,975
Additional PY24 Funds Added 8/7/24 s 24,6701 5 16050 ] $ 21,422 | S - 15 27,155 | $ 89,307
TOTAL Amount Authorized to Spent $ 304,752 | & 27,467 | § 3897415 666,246 | $ 656,179 1.$ 12,044,384
g I LG ”I Tt i -
PY 23 Funds Remaining S - |3 - |3 - |5 11701815 - |35 117,018
PY 24 Funds Remaining $  6r421)$ 54,804 | S 573871S 425400158 78487 |S 683,499
TOTAL Amount Authorized to Spend ] 67,4211 % 54,804 | 5 57,387 |5 542,418 78,487 |3 800,517
Award No. 2501NHLIEA; Award Date 10/1/2024 Exbipi
ALN No. 93.568 Jnma%& Date%g -a0a4
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY
STANDARD EXHIBIT J
CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND
TRANSPARENCY ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability.and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of
individual Federal grants equal to or greater than $30,000 and awarded on or after October 1,
2010, to report on data related to executive-compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of
$30,000 or more. If the initial award is below $30,000 but subsequent grant modifications result
in a total award equal to or over $30,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting
requirements, as of the date of the award.

In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation
Information), the New Hampshire Department of Energy must report the following information for
any subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:

1)  Name of entity

2y  Amount of award

3)  Funding agency

4)  NAICS code for contractsfCFDA program number for grants

5)  Program source

6)  Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action

7)  Location of the entity

8)  Principal place of performance

9  Unique identifter of the entity (UEI #)

10) Total compensation and names of the top five executives if: )
a.  More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and

those revenues are greater than $25M annually and

b. . Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in
which the award or award amendment is made.

The Grantee identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the
provisions of The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282
and Public Law 110-252, and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive
Compensation Information), and further agrees to have the Grantee’s representative, as identified
in Sections [.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

The below named Grantee agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the New
Hampshire Department of Energy and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

WOM Chief Executive Officer

tee Reptesen‘mﬁ@ﬁa’mle Grantee's Representative Title
COmmunity Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties Inc. 8-23-2024
Grantee Name Date
Award No. 250I1NHLIEA; Award Date; 10/1/2024 Exhjbit J
ALN No. 93.568 Initials Q_B:_ Date %@3- E;\Dauc
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY
STANDARD EXHIBIT J
FORM A

As the Grantee identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, | certify that the. responses to
the below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The UEI number for your entity is: FNDIA6MY3JD3

2. Inyour business or organization’s preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or
organization receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts,
subcontracts, loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2} $25,000,000 or
more in annual gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants,
and/or cooperative agreements?

NO X __YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here
If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 780(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
19867

NO X YES
If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name: Amount:

Name: Amount:

Name; . ~Amount:

Naine: Amount:

Naine; Amount:
Award No, 250INHLIEA; Award Date: 10/1/2024 Exhibit
ALN No. 93.568 Initia@)ﬁ_ Date§ - 35-J0a 1
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‘ State of New Hampshire
Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Scanlan, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that COMMUNITY ACTION
PROGRAM BELKNAP AND MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC. is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered
to transact business in New Hampshire on May 28, 1965. I further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of

State’s office have been received and is in good standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business 1D: 63021
Certificate Number; 0006656579

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 2nd day of April A.D. 2024.

David M. Scanlan
Secretary of State




COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM
. BELKNAP-MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC. ¢,

>3
EMPOWERING COMMUNITIES SINCE 1965

i -i-;g%

it

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

1, Christopher J.

yles, President, Board of Directors, hereby certify that:

1.1 am a duly elected officer of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Countiés, Inc.

-2. The following is a true copy-of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors, duly called
and held on March 14, 2024, at which a quorum of the Directors were present and voting.

" VOTED: That Jeanne Agri, Chief Executive Officer/Executive Director, Michael Tabory,
Chief Operating Officer/Deputy Director, Jill Lesmerises, Chief Fiscal Officer, Steven
Gregoire, Budget Analyst, Christopher J. Pyles, Chair, Board of Directors are duly
authorized on behalf 6f Community Action Program Belknap-Mercimack Counties, Inc. to enter
into contracts or agreements with the State of New Hampshire and any of its agengies or
departments and further is authorized to.execute any and all documents, agreements and other
instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which may in his/her
judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. | hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and
effect as of the date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This
authority was valid thirty (30) days prior to and remains valid for thirty (30) days from the date of this
Certificate of Authority. | further certify that it is understood that the State of New Hampshire will
rely on this certificate as evidence that the persen(s) listed above currently occupy the position(s)
indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of
New Hampshire, all such limitations are expressly stated hérein.

Dated:. "7/0/2 4 / 4 '{ Signature of Elected Officer

Gy,

: Name: Christopher J. Pyles
3, Title: President, B6ard of Dj

: %, .
£7i oS, 8 .‘
L T 1%/“
Rev, 3/14/2024 Z -.f&fw R _ig.-' ¥
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Mailing Addtess P.O. Box 1016, Concord, NH 03302 Administrative Office 2 Industrial Patk Drive, Concord, NH
Phone: 603225-3295 | 1 800 856-5525 "TTY/TIDD 1 800 735-2964 Fax: 603 228-1898
Website: capbm.org



|
ACORD’ CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE N oot

05/08/2024

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER ﬁgﬂéﬁcr Stephanie Peffer
Cross [nsurance-Manchester N exy (603)669-3218 m{: nej; (603) 645-4331
1100 Elm Street E'[‘,‘",J“}{'ESS: manch.certs@crossagency.com
INSURER(S) AFFCRDING COVERAGE NAIC #
Manchester NH 03101 INSURER A: Selective Insurance Co. of SC 19259
INSURED INSURER B : Oranite State Health Care c/o Midwest Employers Casua 23612
Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties Inc, INSURER ¢ : FederalIns Co 20281°
P. 0. Box 1016 INSURER D :
INSURER E !
Concord NH 03302 INSURER F :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER:  23-24 All; 24-25 D&0 & WC REVISION NUMBER:

THIS 18 TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERICD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOGUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN 15 SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR AGDL] POLICY EFF POLICY EXP

ITR : TYPE OF INSURANCE INSD | WvD POLICY NUMBER (MMIDDYYYYY) | (MM/IDDIYYYY) LIMITS
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Directors
Community Action Program of Belknap-Merrimack Counties, [nc.

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Community Action Program of
Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. {a nonprofit organization), which comprise the consolidated
statements of financial position as of February 28, 2023 and 2022, and the related consolidated
statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related
notes to the consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in ail material respects, the financial
position of Community Action Program of Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. as of February 28, 2023
and 2022, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of Community Action Program of
Belknap-Mertrimack Counties, Inc. and to meet our other ethical responsibiiities, in accordance with the
relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America,
and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control refevant to the preparation and
fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to-fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Community Action Program
of Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.’s ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the
date that the consolidated financial statements are available to be issued.



Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issu¢ an auditors’
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards and Govemnment Auditing Standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resuiting from error, as fraud may involve coliusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is
a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made
by a reasonable user based on the consolidated financial statements.

In perferming an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government
Auditing Standards, we:

» Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosures in the caonsolidated financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to ‘the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of Community Action Program of Belknap-Merrimack Counties,
Inc.’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

s Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about Community Action Program of Belknap-Merrimack Counties,
Inc.’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related
matters that we identified during the audit.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements
as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S.
Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a
" required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accerdance with auditing standards
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generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of
federal awards is fairly” stated, in all material respects, in relation to the consolidated financial
statéments as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated September
14, 2023, on our consideration of Community Action Program of Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.’s
internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Community Action Program
of Belknap-Merrimack Counties, In¢.’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering Community Action Program of Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s internal control over
financial reporting and compliance.

Dover, New Hampshire
September 14, 2023




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
FEBRUARY 28, 2023 AND 2022

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash
Accounts receivable
Inventory
Prepaid expenses
Investments

Total current assets

PROPERTY
Land, buildings and improvements
Equipment, furniture and vehicles.
Construction in process

Total property
Less accumulated depreciation
Property, net

OTHER ASSETS
Right of use asset
Cash escrow and reserve funds
Tenant security deposits
Due from related party

Total other assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Current portion of notes payable
Current portion of right of use liability
Line of credit
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Refundable advances

Total current lizbilities
LONG TERM LIABILITIES
Notes payable, less current portion shown above
Right of use liability, less current portion shown above
Tenant security deposits
Total liabilities
NET ASSETS
Without donor restrictions

With donor restrictions

Total net assets

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

2023 202

$ 1,711,575 $ 1,384,485
6,027,912 5,244 821
81,569 271,926
100,225 33,928
128,966 138,783
8,050,237 7,073,753
7627214 7,368,799
4,762,497 6,335,485
132,920 41,401
12,522,831 13,745,685
6,165,156 7,528,363
6,357,475 6,217,322
1,387,327 -
77,328 89,468

8,247 9,120

61,348 65,488
1,534,250 184,076

$ 15,941,862 $ 13,455,151
$ 237926 3 314,265
461,162 -

- 154,350

4,550,252 3,635,655
1177337 1,086,207
1,817,340 1,537,802
8,244,017 6,728,279
668,146 900.489
926,165 -
8,221 9120
9,846,549 7,637,888
5,530,452 5,179,734
564,961 637,528
6,095,413 5,817,263

$ 15,941,962 $ 13,455,151

See Notes to Gonsolidated Financial Statements
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2023

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT
Grant awards
Rental income
QOther funds
In-kind
United Way
Interest income
Realized loss on sdlé of equipment

Total revenues and other support

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM
RESTRICTIONS

Total
EXPENSES
Program
Managament
Total expenses
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS
NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR

Without Donor With Donor

Restrictions Restrictions Total
$ 56,030,603 $ - $ 56,930,603
140,962 - 140,962
2,804,065 3,122,293 . 5,026,358
401,748 ; 401,748
3,659 - .3,659
895 ; 895
(36,538) - (36,538)
60,245,394 3,122,293 63,367,687
3,194,861 (3,194,861) -
63,440,255 (72,568) 63,367,687
61,101,300 - 61,101,300
1,088,237 - 1,988,237
63,089,537 : 63,080,537
350,718 (72,568) 278,150
5,179,734 637,529 5,817,263
$ 5530452 $ 564961 $ 6,095413

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemepts
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2022

Without Donor With Donor
Restrictions Restrictions Total
REVENUES_AND OTHER SUPPORT
Grant awards 3 38,482,087 % - $ 136,482,087
Rental Income 135,298 - 135,298
Other funds 2,528,432 2,650,984 5,177,416
Paycheck Protection Program Loan Forgiveness 1,615,427 1,615,427
In-kind 592,136 - 562,136
United Way 2123 - 2123
Interest Income 74 - 74
Realized gain on sale of equipment 7,200 - 7,200
Total revenues and other support 41,360,777 2,650,984 44,011,761
NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM
RESTRICTIONS 3,082,287 (3,062,287) -
Total 44 423,064 {411,303) 44,011,761
EXPENSES
Program 40,084,851 - 40,084,851
Management 1,917,438 - 1,617,438
Total expenses 42,002,289 - 42,002,289
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 2,420,775 (411,303) 2,009,472
NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 2,758,959 1,048,832 3,807,791
NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR 3 5179734 $ 637529 § 5817,263

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2023

Program Management Total
Salaries and wages $ 8902376 $ 841,141 9,743,517
Payroll taxes and benefits 2,422,222 155,843 2,578,085
Travel 233,521 16,301 249,822
Occupancy 1,360,924 133,139 1,494,063
Program services 44 607,205 - 44 607,205
Other costs: :
Accounting fees 66,194 1,959 68,153
Legal fees 24,793 268 25,061
Supplies 289,188 38,955 328,143
Postage and shipping 45,766 - 45,766
Equipment rental and maintenance 1,540 - 1,540
Printing and publications 41,775 15,970 57,745
Conferences, conventions and meetings 13,885, - 13,885
Interest 3,991 39,049 43,040
Insurance 131,454 30,788 162,242
Membership fees 13,298 10,283 23,581
Utility and maintenance 139,247 - 139,247
Computer services 71,214 - 71,214
Other 2,298,910 139,405 2,438,315
Depreciation 32,049 565,136 597,185
In-kind 401,748 * 401,748

Total functional expenses $ 61,101,300 $

1,988,237 $__ 63,089,537

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAN BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2022

Salaries and wages
Payroll taxes and benefits
Travel
Occupancy
Program services
Other costs:
Accounting fees
Legal fees
Supplies
Postage and shipping
Equipment rental and maintenance
Printing and publications
Conferences, conventions and meetings
Interest
Insurance
Membership fees
Utility and mainfenance
Computer services
" Other
Depreciation
In-kind

Total functional expenses

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Total

Program Management
$ 7961177 $ 1,180,579 § 9,141,756
2,296,690 228,375 2,525,065
194,343 9,648 203,991,
1,267,982 114,418 1,382,400
25,639,659 - 25,639,659
- 74,855 74,855
15,361 152 15,513
159,844 44,534 204,378
49,860 8,731 58,591
1.141 - 1,141
28,133 27,696 55,829
13,964 - 13,964
29,187 26,841 56,028
124,730 43,856 168,586
16,276 - .16,276
88,702 104,142 192,844
111,990 - 111,990
927,525 53,611 981,136
566,151 - 566,151
592 136 - 592,136
$ 40,084851 $ 1917438 $ 42002289




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2023 AND 2022

CASH FLOWS FRONM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Change in net assets :
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to

net cash from operating activities:
Depreciation
Paycheck Protection program loan forgiveness
Interest on deferred financing costs
Realized loss on disposal of equipment
Decrease (increase) in current assets:

Accounts receivable

Inventory

Prepaid expenses

Due from related party

Tenant security deposits
Increase (decrease) in current liabilities:

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses

Refundable advances. .

Tenant security deposits

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sale of property
Additions to property
Investments
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net repayments on line of credit
Repayment of long term debt
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES
NET INCREASE IN GASH AND RESTRICTED CASH
CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR
CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH BALANCE, END OF YEAR
CASH AND RESTRIGTED CASH:

Cash
Cash escrow and reserve funds

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:
Cash paid during the year for interest

023 2022

$ 278,150 2,009,472
597,185 566,151

- (1,615,427)

483 483

36,538 (7,200)

(783,291) (1,481,812)
190,357 (216,031)

(66,297) 39,781

4,140 (65,488)

873 (2,239)

914,597 2,109,823

91,130 297,256

279,538 500,861

(899) 2,239

1,642,504 2,137,869

- 7,200
(773,876) (1,141,101)
9,837 (10,797)
(764,039) {1,144,698)
(154,350) (225,678)
(309,165) (258,743)
(463,515) (484 ,421)
314,950 508,750
1,473,853 965,203

$ 1,788,903 1,473,953
$ 1,711,575 1,384,485
77,328 89,468

$ 1,788,903 1,473,953
$ 43,040 56,028

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP — MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC,

NOTES TO CONSCLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2023 AND 2022

ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Organization

Community Action Program Belknap — Merrimack Counties, Inc. (the Organization) is a
New Hampshire nonprofit organization that serves nutritional, health, living and support
needs of the low income and elderly clients in the two county service areas, as well as
state wide. These services are provided with the financial support of various federal,
state, county and local organizations.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Community Action
Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc., and the following entities as Community
Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. has both an economic interest and
control of the entities through a majority voting interest in their governing board. All
significant infercompany items and transactions have been eliminated from basic
consolidated financial statements.

» Sandy Ledge Limited Partnership
= CAP BMC Development Corporation

Basis of Accounting

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
accrual basis of accounting in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements of the Organization have been prepared in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, which require the
Organization to report information regarding its financial position and activities
according to the following net asset classifications:

Net assets without donor restrictions inciude net assets that are not
subject to any donor-imposed restrictions and may be expended for any
purpose in performing the primary objectives of the Organization. These
net assets may be used at the discretion of the Organization’s
management and board of directors.

Net assets with donor restrictions include net assets subject to
stipulations imposed by donors and grantors. Some donor restrictions are
temporary in nature; those restrictions will be met by actions of the
Organization or by passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual
in nature, whereby the donor has stipulated the funds be maintained in
perpetuity.
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP — MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2023 AND 2022

Donor restricted contributions are reported as increases in net assets with donor -
restrictions. When restrictions expire, net assets are reclassified from net assets with
donor restrictions to net assets without donor restrictions in the consolidated statements
of activities.

The Organization had net assets with donor restrictions of $564,961 and $637,529 at
February 28, 2023 and 2022, respectively. See Note 14.

Income Taxes
Community Action Program of Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. is organized as a -
nonprofit corporation and is exempt from federal income taxes under Internal Revenue
Code Section 501{c)(3). The Internal Revenue Service has determined them to be other
than a private foundation.

The Organization files information returns in the United States and the State of New
Hampshire. The Organization is subject to examinations by tax authorities for three -
years.

CAP BMC Development Corporation (the Corporation) is taxed as a “C" Corporation
under the Internal Revenue Code. The Corporation accounts for deferred income taxes
under the asset and liability method in accordance with Accounting Standards
Codification No. 740 (ASC 740), “Accounting for Income Taxes”. The objective of this
method is to establish deferred tax assets and liabilities for temporary differences
between the financial reporting basis and the tax basis of the Company’s assets and
liabilities at the enacted tax rate expected to be in effect when such amounts are
realized or settled. ASC 740 also requires deferred tax assets and liabilities to be shown
separately. There are no deferred tax assets or liabilities. The Corporation has no
federal net operating loss carryforwards available at February 28, 2023 and 2022.

Sandy Ledge Limited Partnership (the Partnership) is taxed as a partnership. Federal
income taxes are not payable, or provided by the partnership. Earnings and losses are
included in the partners’ federal income tax returns based on their share of partnership
eamings. Partnerships are required to file income tax returns with the State of New
Hampshire and pay an income tax at the state's statutory rate.

Accounting Standard Codification No. 740 (ASC 740), Accounting for Income Taxes,
established the minimum threshold for recognizing, and a system for measuring, the
benefits of tax return positions in consolidated financial statements. The Organization
has analyzed its tax position taken on its income tax returns for the past three years,
and has concluded that no additional provision for income taxes is necessary in the
Organization's consolidated financial statements.
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COMMUNITY ACTION. PROGRAM BELKNAP — MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2023 AND 2022

Property -

Property and equipment is recorded at cost or, if donated, at the approximate fair value
at the date of the donation. Assets purchased with a useful life in excess of one year
and exceeding $5,000 are capitalized unless a lower threshold is required by certain
funding sources. Depreciation is computed on the straight-line basis over the estimated
useful lives of the related assets as follows: :

Buildings and improvements 40 years
Equipment, fumiture and vehicles 3 -10 years

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with United States
generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and
-assumptions that affect certain reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date -of the consolidated financial statements
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the consolidated statements of cash flows, the Organization considers
all liquid investments purchased with original maturities of three months or less to be
cash equivalents.

The Organization maintains its cash in bank deposit accounts, which at times may
exceed federally insured limits. The Organization has not experienced any losses in
such accounts and believes it is not exposed to any significant risk with respect to these
accounts,

Conftributions

All contributions are considered to be available for unrestricted use unless specifically
restricted by the donor. Amounts received that are restricted by the donor for future
‘periods or for specific purposes are reported as temporarily restricted or permanently
restricted support, depending on the nature of the restriction. However, if a restriction is
fulfilled in the same period in which the contribution is received, the Organization reports
the support as unrestricted.

Contributed Services

Donated services are recognized as contributions in accordance with FASB ASC No.
958, Accounting for Contributions Received and Contributions Made, if the services (&)
create or enhance non-financial assets or (b) require specialized skills, and would
otherwise be purchased by the Agency.

Volunteers provided various services throughout the year that are not recognized as
contributions in the consolidated financial statements since the recognition criteria under
FASB ASC No. 958 were not met.
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP — MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2023 AND 2022

In-Kind Donations / Noncash Transactions

Donated facilities, services and supplies are reflected as revenue and expense in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements, if the criteria for recognition is met.
This represents the estimated fair value for the service, supplies and space that the
Organization might incur under normal operating activities. The Qrganization received
$401,748 and $592,136 in donated facilities, services and supplies for the years ended
February 28, 2023 and February 28, 2022, respectively (See Note 17). :

Advertising .
The Organization expenses advertising costs as they are incurred. Total advertising

costs for the years ended February 28, 2023 and February 28, 2022 totaled $133,749
and $134,193, respectively.

Inventory
Inventory consists of weatherization supplies and work in process and is valued at the

lower of cost or net realizable value, using the first-in, first-out method.

Revenue Recognition

Amounts received from conditional grants and contracts for specific purposes are
generally recognized as income to the extent that related expenses and conditions are
incurred or met. Conditional grants received prior to the conditions being met are
reported as refundable advances. Contributions of cash and other assets are reported
as with donor restrictions if they are received with donor imposed stipulations that limit
the use of the donated assets. However, if a restriction is fulfilled in the same period in
which the contribution is received, the Organization reports the support as without donor
restrictions.

~ Program Service Revenue
Program service revenue is recognized as revenue when the services are performed.

Rental Revenue

Sandy Ledge (the Partnership) derives revenues from the rental of apartment units.
Revenues are recognized as income, monthly, when rents become due, and control
of the apartment units is transferred to the lessees. The individual leases are for a
term of one year and are cancelable by the tenants. Control of the leased units is
transferred to the lessee in an amount that reflects the consideration the Partnership
expects to be entitied to in exchange for the leased units. The cost incurred to obtain
the lease will be expensed as incurred.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been presented in
the Consolidated Statements of Functional Expenses. Accordingly, certain costs have
been allocated among the program services and supporting activities benefited.
Expenses are charged to each program based on the direct expenses incurred or
estimated usage based on time spent on each program by staff.
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2023 AND 2022

Expense . Method of allocation

Wages and benefits Time and effort

Depreciation Actual assets used by program
All other expenses Direct assignment

New Accounting Pronouncements

In February 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting
Standards Update (ASU) 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842), to increase transparency and
comparability among organizations by recognizing lease assets and lease liabilities on
the statement of financial position and disclosing key information about leasing
arrangements for lessees and lessors. The standard applies a right of use model that
requires, all leases with a lease term of more than 12 months, to recognize an asset
representing its right to use the underlying asset for the lease term and liability to make
lease payments to be recorded. The Organization elected not to restate the comparative
~ period. The Organization also elected not to reassess at adoption (i) expired or existing
contracts to determine whether they are or contain a lease, (ii) the lease classification of
any existing leases, (iii} initial direct costs for existing leases. The adoption of ASU
2016-02 resulted in the recognition of operating right of use assets of $1,387,327 and
operating right of use lease liabilities of $1,387,327 as of March 1, 2022. Results for
periods beginning prior to February 28, 2022 continue to be reporied in accordance with
the Organization's historical accounting treatment. The adoption of ASU 2016-02 did not
have a material impact on the Organization’s results of operations and cash flows.

In September 2020, the FASS issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2020-
07, Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958): Presentation and Disclosures by Not for-Profit
Entities for Contributed Nonfinancial Assets, intended to improve transparency in the
reporting of contributed nonfinancial assets, also known as gifts-in-kind, for not-for-profit
organizations. Examples of contributed nonfinancial assets include fixed assets such as
land, buildings, and equipment; the use of fixed assets or utilities; materials and
supplies, such as food or clothing; intangible assets; and recognized contributed
services. The ASU requires a not for-profit organization to present contributed
nonfinancial assets as a separate line item in the statement of activities, apart from
contributions of cash or other financial assets. It aiso requires certain disclosures for
each category of contributed nonfinancial assets recognized. The Agency adopted the
provisions of ASU 2020-07 during 2022.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from
balances outstanding at year end. Balances that are still outstanding after management
has used reasonable collection efforts are written off through a charge to the valuation
allowance and a credit to accounts receivable. The allowance for uncollectible accounts
was estimated to be zero at February 28, 2023 and 2022. The Organization has no
policy for charging interest on overdue accounts.
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP — MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2023 AND 2022

REFUNDABLE ADVANCES .

Grants received in advance are recorded as refundable advances and recognized as
revenue in the period in which the related services or expenditures are performed or
incurred. Funds received in advance of grantor conditions being met aggregated
$1,817,340 and $1,537,802 as of February 28, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY A
The following represents the Organization’s financial assets as of February 28:
) 2023 2022
Financial assets at year end:
Cash and cash equivalents, undesignated $ 1711575 $ 1,384,485
Accounts receivable i 6,027,912 5,244,621
Investments ' 128,956 138,793
Cash reserves A 74,847 81,143
Cash escrow 2,481 8,325
Total financial assets 7.945 771 6,857,367
Less amounts not available to be used within one year: .
Net assets with donor restrictions 564,961 637,529
Reserve funds 74,847 81,143
Amounts not available within one year 639,808 718,672
Financial assets available to meet general ,
expenditures over the next twelve months $ 7305963 S 6,138,685

It is the Organization’s goal to maintain financial assets to meet 60 days of operating
expenses which approximates $10,200,000 and $6,710,000, at February 28, 2023 and
2022, respectively. The Organization has a line of credit with $700,000 and $445,650,
available to borrow on at February 28, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

RETIREMENT PLAN

The Organization has a qualified contributory pension plan which covers substantially all
employees. The cost of the plan is charged to programs administered by the
Organization. The expense of the plan for the year ended February 28, 2023 and 2022
totaled $209,878 and $186,976, respectively.
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP — MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2023 AND 2022 .

OPERATING LEASES

On January 1, 2022, the Organization was required to adopt ASU 2016-02, Leases
(Topic 842). As part of implementing ASU 2016-02, the Organization evaluated current
contracts to determine which met the criteria of a lease. The right of use (ROU) assets
represent the Organization’s right to use underlying assets for the lease term, and the
lease liabilities represent the Organization’s obligation to make lease payments arising
from these leases. The ROU assets and lease liabilities, all of which arise from
operating leases, were calculated based on the present value of future lease payments
- over the lease terms. The Organization has elected to discount future cash flows at the
risk free borrowing rates commensurate with the lease terms, which was 1.8% at March
1, 2022. Common expenses, classified as occupancy costs in the accompanying
financial statements, are considered a non-lease component under FASB ASC 842 and
are recognized as costs are incuried. The Organization’s operating leases are
described below.

Facilities occupied by the Organization for its community service programs are leased
under various operating leases. The lease terms range from month to month to twenty
years. For the year ended February 28, 2023 and 2022, the annual leasé expense for
the leased facilities was $586,539 and $544,299, respectively.

The approximate future minimum [ease payments on the above leases are as follows:

Year Ended

February 28 Amount
2024 $ 488,157
2025 287,590
2026 92,911
2027 82,006
2028 77,500
Thereafter 477,065
1,505,229
Less imputed interest 117,802
Total $ 1.387.327

ACCRUED EARNED TIME

The Organization has accrued a liability for future annual leave time that its employees
have earned and vested with the employees in the amount of $691,684 and $660,158 at
February 28, 2023 and 2022, respectively. The Organization amended the policy
effective March 1, 2022, the policy allows for a maximum of 50 days to be carried over
to the next fiscal year, however, upon termination only two weeks will be paid out. The
two week liability is $285,599 at February 28, 2023.
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP — MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2023 AND 2022

BANK LINE OF CREDIT

The Organization has a $200,000 revolving line of credit agreement (the line) with a
bank that is due on demand. The line calls for monthly variable interest payments based
on the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate (7.75% and 3.25% at February 28, 2023 and
2022, respectively) plus 1%, but not less than 6% per annum. The line is secured by all
the Organization's assets. There was no balance outstanding at February 28, 2023.
There was a balance of $154,350 outstanding at February 28, 2022.

The Organization had a revolving line of credit agreement (the fine) in the amount of
$400,000, with a bank that is due on demand. The line called for monthly variable
interest payments based on the LIBOR rate (2.41% at February 28, 2022). The line was
secured by all the Organization's assets. There was no balance outstanding at February
28, 2022. The line was closed during the year ended February 28, 2023.

The Organization entered into an additional revolving line of credit agreement (the line)
in the amount of $500,000, with a bank that is due on June 2, 2023. The line calls for
monthly variable interest payments based on the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate (7.75%
at February 28, 2023). The line is secured by all the Organization’s assets. There was
no balance outstanding at February 28, 2023.

CONCENTRATION OF RISK

For the year ended February 28, 2023, approximately $18,300,000 (29%), and
$32,000,000 (51%), of the Organization's total revenue was received from the
Department of Health and Human Services and the Department of Treasury,
respectively. For the year ended February 28, 2022, $13,200,000 (30%), and
$15,300,000 (35%), of the Organization's total revenue was received from the
Department of Health and Human Services and the Department of Treasury,
respectively. The future scale and nature of the Organization is dependent upon
continued support from these departments.

LONG TERM DEBT
Long term debt consisted of the following as of February 28:

2023 2022
5.50% note payable to a financial institution in
monthly installments for principal and interest of
$1,634 through July 2039. The note is secured by
property of the Organization. $ 210560 $ 218,228
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM KNAP — MER

CK COUNTIES, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2023 AND 2022

5.75% note payable to a financial institution in
monthly installments for principal and interest of
$13,912 through July 2023. The note is secured by
property of the Organization for Lakes Region Family
Center.

3.00% note payable to the City of Concord for
leasehold improvements in monthly installments for
principal and interest of $747 through May 2027. The
note is secured by property of the Organization for the
agency administrative building renovations.

7.00% note payable to a bank in monthly installments
for principal and interest of $4,842 through May 2023.
The note is secured by a first real estate mortgage
and assignment of rents and leases on property
located in Concord, New Hampshire for Early Head
Start.

1.00% Paycheck Protection Program loan payable to
a bank in monthly installments for principal and
interest of $7,511 through April 2025. $1,615,427 of
the proceeds received was forgiven during the year
ended February 28, 2022. (See Note 11).

Non-interest bearing note payable by Sandy Ledge
Limited Partnership to New Hampshire Housing
deferred until June 1, 2034 or until the project is sold
or refinanced or surplus cash is available. The note is
collateralized by a mortgage on real estate.

Total long-term debt before unamortized deferred
financing cost

Unamortized deferred financing costs

Less amounts due within one year

Long term portion

18

2023 2022
71,040 219,279
35,179 42,958
65,076 116,572

187,615 280,439
341,922 343,081
911,392 1,220,557

(5,320) (5.803}

906,072 1,214,754
(237.926) (314.265)
$§ 668146 $ 900489
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP — MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC,

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2023 AND 2022

The scheduled maturities of long-term debt as of February 28, 2023 were as follows:

Year Ending
February 28 Amount
2024 $ 237,926
2025 : 106,239
2026 27,053
2027 18,294
2028 11,783
Thereafter 510,097

$ 911,30

PAYCHECK PROTECTION PROGRAM

In April 2020, the Organization receivéd loan proceeds in the amount of $1,935,300
under the Paycheck Protection Program (“PPP"). The PPP, was established as part of
the Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic Security Act (“CARES Act").

On September 14, 2021, the Organization received partial forgiveness in the amount of
$1,615,427. The forgiven proceeds are included in income for the year ended February
28, 2022. The remaining $319,873 has been converted to a loan, due in 44 monthly
payments of principal and interest at a rate of 1%. The loan will mature in April 2025.

The outstanding balance on the PPP loan at February 28, 2023 is $187,615. (See Note
10).

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT .
Property and equipment consisted of the following as of February 28;

2023 2022

Land $ 279340 $§ 279,340
Building and improvements 7,347,874 7,089,459
Equipment and vehicies 4,762,497 6,335,485
Construction in process 132,920 41,401
12,522,631 13,745,685

Less accumulated depreciation: 6,165,156 ___ 7,528,363
Property and equipment, net $ 6357475 $ 6217322

Depreciation expense for tHe years ended February 28, 2023 and 2022 totaled
$597,185 and $566,151, respectively.
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP — MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC.

NOTES TO CONSO-LIVDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2023 AND 2022

CONTINGENCIES

The Organization receives grant funding from various sources. Under the terms of these
agreements, the QOrganization is required to use the funds within a certain period and for
purposes specified by the governing laws and regulations. If expenditures were found
not to have been made in compliance with the laws and regulations, the Organization
might be required to repay the funds. No provisions have been made for this
contingency because specific amounts, if any, have not been determined or assessed
as of February 28, 2023.

NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS
Net assets with donor restrictions are available for the following specific program

services as of February 28:

- NH Food Pantry Coalition
Senior Center :
Elder Services
Mary Gale
NH Rotary Food Challenge
Summer Feeding
Caring Fund
Agency — FAP.

Agency Head Start
Agency — FP/PN
Community Crisis _
Other Programs

Total net assets with donor restrictions

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

2023 2022
3 663 % 663
142,251 143,437
7,317 68,427
38,130 25,629
- 5,064
20,503 47,540
8,793 8,792
60,913 27,307
216,604 222,258
69,329 87,253
- 350
458 809

564,961 637,529

The Organization serves as the management agent for the following organizations:

Related Party
Belmont Elderly Housing, Inc.
Epsom Elderty Housing, Inc.
Alton Housing for the Elderly, Inc.
Pembroke Housing for the Elderly, Inc.
Newbury Elderly Housing, Inc.
Kearsarge Elderly Housing, Inc.
Riverside Housing Corporation
Twin Rivers Community Corporation
Ozanam Place, Inc.
TRCC Housing Limited Partnership

20

Function
HUD Property
HUD Property
HUD Property
HUD Property
HUD Property
HUD Property
HUD Property
Property Development
Transitional Support Services
Low Income Housing Tax
Credit Property
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP — MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2023 AND 2022

The services performed by the Organization included, marketing, accounting, tenant
selection (for the HUD properties), HUD compliance (for the HUD properties), and
maintenance of property.

The amount due from the related parties for operating activities (collectively) at February
28, 2023 and 2022 was $268,293 and $324,385, respectively, and is included in
accounts receivables. Additional amounts due from related parties at February 28, 2023 -
and 2022 were $61,348 and 65,488, respectively.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. has also invested money
relating to its Fix-it program in certain mutual funds. The fair value of the mutual funds
totaled $128,956 and $138,793 at February 28, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

ASC Topic No. 825-10, Financial Instruments, provides a definition of fair value which
focuses on an exit price rather than an entry price, establishes a framework in generally
accepted accounting principles for measuring fair value which emphasizes that fair value is
a market-based measurement, not an entity-specific measurement, and requires
expanded disclosures about fair value measurements. In accordance with FASB ASC 820,
the Organization may use valuation techniques consistent with market, income and cost
approaches to measure fair value. As a basis for considering market participant
assumptions in fair value measurements, FASB ASC 820 establishes a fair value
hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs used in measuring fair values. The hierarchy gives
the highest priority to Level 1 measurements and the lowest priority to Level 3
measurements. The three levels of the fair value hierarchy under FASB ASC 820 are
described as follows:

Level 1 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices available in
active markets for identical investments as of the reporting date.

Level 2 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are other than quoted market
ptices in active markets, which are either directly or indirectly observable as
of the reporting date, and fair value can be determined through the use of
models or other valuation methodologies.

Level 3 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable inputs in
situations where there is little or no market activity for the asset or liability
and the reporting entity makes estimates and assumptions related to the
pricing of the asset or liability including assumptions regarding risk

At February 28, 2023 and 2022, the Organization’s investments were classified as Level 1
and were based on fair value.
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2023 AND 2022

Fair Value Measurements using Significant Observable Inputs (Level 1)

2023 2022
Beginning balance — mutual funds $ 138793 $ 126,996
Total gains (losses) — mutual funds (9,837) 11,797
Ending balance — mutual funds $ 128956 3 138,793

The carrying amount of cash, current assets, other assets and current liabilities,
approximates fair value because of the short maturity of those instruments.

IN-KIND CQNTR]BUT]ONSIgERVICEé

The Organization records the value of in-kind contributions according to the accounting
policies described in Note 1.

The fair value of gifts in kind included contributions in the financial statements and the
corresponding program expenses for the year ended February 28, 2023, is as follows:

Volunteer hours

Head Start and Early Head Start $ M7,171
SCSEP 88,700
Rental space ' 146,026
Advertising 15,960
Donated goods 33.891
Total $ 401,748

RECLASSIFICATION

Certain amounts and accounts from the prior year financial statements have been
reclassified to enhance the comparability with the presentation of the current year.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Organization has evaluated subsequent events through September 14, 2023, the
date the consoliddted financial statements were available to be issued.
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SCHEDRULE OF EXPENRITURES QF FERERAL AND NON-FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2023

FEDERAL GRANTOR/
PROGRAM TITLE
US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
HEAD START CLUSTER
Head Start
CRSSA - Head Start
ARPA - Head Start

Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program

ARPA-Low Incoma Home Enargy Assistance Program

Low Income Home Enargy Assistance Program-BWE
ARPA-Low Income Heme Energy Assistance Program-BWF

Low Income Water Assistance Program

Community Services Block Grant
CV-Community Services Block Grant

Social Services Block Grant-Home Delivered & Congregate Meals

Temporary Assistance for Needy Families-Family Planning
Temporary Assistance for Neady Families-Family Plancing FPAR

AGING CLUSTER
Titie M, Part B-Senior Transportation
Titls {ll, Part C-Home Delivered Meals-HDCS
Title lil, Part &-Home Delivered Meals
Titls W, Part C-Cengregate
Title HI, Part C-Grab and Go Meals
NSIP

CHILD CARE AND DEVELOFPMENT FUND CLUSTER
Child Care & Development Biock Grant
ARPA-Child Care & Development Block Grant
Child Cara Mandatory & Matehing Funds of the CCOF

MEDICAID CLUSTER
Medical Assistance Program
Medical Asslstance Program - Vieterans

STLT Health Department Response to Public Health or Healthcare Crises
Family Planning - Sarvices

Maternal, infant, & Early Childheod Home Visiting Program

Naticral Family Caregiver Suppen, Title Hl, Part E-Service Link

Special Programs for Aging, Title 1V-Service Link

State Health Insurance Assistance Program

Medi Enroliment Assi & Program

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE

Special Suppl. Nutrition Program for Women, Infants & Chitdren
Senler Farmers Market
LChild & Adult Care Food Program

CHILO NUTRITION GLUSTER
Summer Food Service Program For Children

ASSISTANCE LISTING
NUMBER PASS THROUGH GRANTOR'S NAME

93.600

93.600

S93.600

93.568 State of New Hampshire
93.568 State of New Hampshire
93568 State of Naw Hampshirg
093.568 State of New Hampshirg
93.499 State of New Hampshire
93,569 Stata of New Hampshire
93.569 State of New Hampshirg
93.667 State of New Hampshire
93.558 State of New Hampshire
93558 State of New Hampshire
£3.044 State of New Hampshire
93.045 State of New Hampshira
93.045 State of New Hampshire
93.045 State of New Hampshire
63.046 State of New Hampshire
93053 State of New Hampshirg
93.575 State of New Hampshire
93.575 Stata of New Hampshire
93.596 State of New Hampshire
93.778 State of New Hampshire
93.778 Gateways Community Services
93391 State of Naw Hampshire
93.217 State of New Hampshire
93.870 State of New Hampshire
93.052 State of New Hampshire
93.048 Stata of New Hampshire
93.324 State of New Hampshire
93.07T1 State of New Hampshire
10,557 State of New Hampshire
10.578 State ¢f New Hampshire
10.558 State of New Hampshire
10.586 State of New Hampshire

See Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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IDENTIFYING NUMBER

Q1CH2052-03-01
Q1HETQ00522
1HEQOD387-01-01
CLUSTER TOTAL

02-62.62-520010-18870000
02-52-52-520010-24490000
02-52-52-520010-35400000
02-52-52-520010-24496000
TOTAL

02-52-52-24520000

200INHCSCS
2001NHCSC3
TOTAL

05-95-48-481010-0255

2001NHTANF
200INHTANF

TOTAL

1TAANHTISS
2107NHCMCE
2101NHCMCE
2101INHCMCS
210iNHCMCS
1056477
CLUSTER TOTAL

NONE PROVIDED

NONE PROVIDED
CLUSTER TOTAL

SONWPG0008-01-00

CLUSTER TOTAL

NH780T000031
FRHPPAD16063
K10MG3I3595
2001NROAFC-02
S0MP024102
90SA0003-02-60
2001NHMISH-00
HHS TOTAL

15154NHT03W 1003 & 5003
194NHOB3YE314
NONE PROVIDED

NCNE PROVIDED

FEDERAL
EXPENDITURES

3 4,918,443
82,597
347,070

5348110

5,383,170
3,207,214

172,366

437.212

5504 652

33.094

385,683

183.017

568,710

472,548

248
1,211

1,460

151,805

83.419
754,967
143.218

1,388,952

247,101
161,232

57,708
466,041

4656041
104,58

14,256

118845

398,344
43,517
145,733
33,459
47,971
20,307
4011

3 18,296,125

5 724,991
67,084
143,841

$ 148,742

PASSED THROUGH
TO SUB-RECIFIENTS



FEDERAL GRANTOR/
PROGRAM TITLE

FOCD DISTRIBUTION CLUSTER
Commadity Supplemental Food Program
Commodity Supplemental Food Program
Emergency Food Assistante Program-Administratian
Emargency Food Assistance Program

. CORPORATION FOR NATIONAL & COMMUNITY SERVICES

FOSTER GRANDPARENTS/SENIOR COMPANION CLUSTER
Senlor Campanien Program

US DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
Formula Grants for Rural Areas-Concard Transit

TRANSIT SERVICES PROGRAMS CLUSTER
Enhanced Mobility of Seniors & Ind. WiDisabifities-CAT
Enhanced Mobilly of Seniors & ind. Wilisabilities-Mid State Transpeortation
Enhanced Mohllity of Seniars & Ind. Wilisabilities-Volunteer Drivers

US DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT

Emergency Solutions Grant
CV-Emergency Sofutions Grant

Supportive Housing
Coatinuum of Care Program

US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

|JA-Weatherization Assistance for Low Income Persons
Weatherzation Assistance for Low Income Fersons

US DEPARTMENT OF LABOR
Senior Community Service Employment Program

U$S, DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY

Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds

Er Rental Assi Program
Emergency Rental Assistance Program
Emergency Rental Assistance Program
Emetgency Rental Assistancs Program
Emergency Rental Asslstance Program
Emergency Rentat Assistance Program

NON-FEDERAL
NEW HAMPSHIRE PUBLIC UTHLITIES COMPANY
Electrical Assistance Program

BASS THROUGH GRANTOR'S NAME

ASSISTANCE LISTING
NUMBER
10.685 State of Naw Hampshire
10.665 State of New Hampshire
10.568 State of New Hampshire
10.569 State of New Hampshire

94.015

26,509

20,513
20.513
26.513

14.231
14234

14.235
14.267

81.042
81.042

17.235

21.027

21023
21.023
1023
21.023
21023
21.023

See Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
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State of New Hampshire-Department of Transportation

State of New Hampshire-Depariment of Transportation
Stata of New Hampshire-Depariment of Transportation

Merrimack County

Stats of New Hampshirte
Stals of New Hampshire

Stata of New Hampshire
Stato of New Hampshire

State of New Hampshire
State of New Hampshire

‘

Slate of New Hampshire

NH Housing

Merimack County
NH Housing
NH Bousing
NH Housing
NH Housing
WNH Housing

ERAPR §
ERAP 2

HSS

IDENTIFYING NUMBER

2C4NHB14YB00S
204NHB14Y8005
81750000
81750000
CLUSTER TOTAL

USDA TOTAL

18SCANHDOY
CNCS TOTAL

NH-18-X046

NiH-18-X043
NH-18-X043
NH-65-X001
CLUSTER TOTAL

DOT TOTAL

05-85-42-423010-7927
05-85-42-423010-7927
TOTAL

05-95-42-423010-7927-102-500731
05-85-42-423010-7927-102-500731
HUD TOTAL

02:52-52 5200 00N3000-074.500587
02:52-52-520010-32560000-074- 509567
DOE TOTAL

1044761

DOL TOTAL

SLFRPO145

Cold Weather Funds
ERADO12 and ERAD43S
ERADO12 and ERAC435
ERAEQ118

Housing Stability

US TREASURY TOTAL
TOTAL

FEDERAL
EXFENDITURES

5 452,841
250,749

469,791

5.851.018

PASSED THROUGH
TO SUB-RECIPIENTS

$ . 452,841
33,528

5851018

7,044,369

6,337,287

$ 8128857

3 6,337,387

3 322224
5 322,224

$ 623473

82,428
28,781

64,859
1768.168

§ 799,641
s 105,539

234,464
340,403

BB.O55

3 35,982
288,813
§ 324 795

3 337.303
$_ 3aes

s 28mew

22,929

15,913,288
12,651,566

459,514

14,848

79.565

5 39,141,710

3 . 3204 362
$ 60,744,795

$ 8,337,387

$ 1,983,648

$ 1,720,270




COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAN. BELKNAP-MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC.

NOTE 1

NOTE 2

NOTE 3

NOTE 4

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2023

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of.expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule)
includes the federal award activity of Community Action Program Belknap-
Merrimack Counties, Inc. under programs of the federal government for the year
ended February 28, 2023. The information in this Schedule is presented in
accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations
Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule
presents only a selected portion of the operations of Community Action Program
Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc., it is not intended to and does not present the
financial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows of the Organization.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of
accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles
contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not
allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. Negative amounts shown on the
Schedule represent adjustments or credits made in the normal course of
business to amounts reported as expenditures in prior years.

INDIRECT COST RATE

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. has elected to use
the ten percent de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under thé Uniform
Guidance.

FOOD COMMODITIES AND VEHICLES
Nonmonetary assistance is reported in the Schedule at the fair value of the

commodities received and disbursed.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON
AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors
Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counhes Inc.

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicablé to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial
statements. of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. (a nonprofit
organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of February 28, 2023, and
the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then
ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon
dated September 14, 2023.

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

fn planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Community-
Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting
{internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that-are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Community Action Program
Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s internal confrol. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties,
Inc.’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during
our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were
not identified.
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Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Community Action Program
Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.’s financial statements are free from material misstatement,
we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,  contracts,
and grant agreements, noncompliance ‘with which could have a direct and material effect on
‘the determination of the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance
with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Organization’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the
Organization’s internal control and compllance Accordmgiy, this communication is not suitable
for any other purpose.

Dover, New Hampshire
September 14, 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOREACH
MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANGE
REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Directors
Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program
Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s compliance
with the types of compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that
could have a direct and material effect on each of Community Action Program Belknap-
Merrimack Counties, Inc.’s major federal programs for the year ended February 28, 2023.
Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s major federal programs are
identified in the summary of auditors’ results section of the accompanying schedule of i ndmgs
and guestioned costs.

In our opinion, Community Action Program Beiknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. complied, in all
material respects, with the types of comp[iance requirements referred to above that could have
a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended February
28, 2023, :

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform
Guidance are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance
section of our report.

We are required to be independent of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack
Counties, Inc. and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with relevant ethical
requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of Community Action
Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s compliance with the compliance requirements
referred to above.
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Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the
requirements of laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant
agreements applicable to Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.’s
federal programs.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with
the compliance requirements referred to above occurred; whether due to fraud or error, and
express an opinion on Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.’s
compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not
absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform
Guidance will always detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting
matertal noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control. Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it
would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about
Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc’s compliance with the
. requirements of each major federal program as a whole.

In performing an audit in accordange with generally accepted auditing standards, Government
Audifing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance, we:

» Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit.

o ldentify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error,
and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding Community Action Program
Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s compliance with the compliance requirements
referred to above and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in
the circumstances.

¢ Obtain an understanding of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties,
Inc.'s internal control over compliance relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report on internal
control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Community Action Program
Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no
such opinion is expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other

matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and
material weaknesses in internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit.
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Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

A deficiency in internal contral over compliance exists when the design or operation of a
control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a
type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely. basis. A material weakness in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected, oh a timely basis. A significant defi clency in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in intemal control
over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe
than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed
to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over compllance Given these
limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. However, material
weaknesses or significant deficienciés in internal control over compliance may exist that have
not been identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requirements of the Umform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other
purpose ‘_

Dover, New Hampshire
September 14, 2023

30



COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP-WIERRIMACK COUNTIES! INC,

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28,2023

SUMMARY OF AUDITORS’ RESULTS

1.

The auditors’ report expresses an unmodified opinion on whether the financial statements
of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. were prepared in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

No significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the financial statements are reported in
the /ndependent Audifors’ Report on Infernal Control Over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and other Matfers Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards. No material weaknesses are reported.

No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of Community Action
Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc., which would be required to be reported in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards were disclosed during the audit.

No significant deficiencies in internal control over major federal award programs are
reported in the Independent Auditors’ Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and
On Internal Control Over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance. No material
weaknesses are reported.

The auditors’ report. on compliance for the major federal award programs for Community
Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. expresses an unmodified opinion on all
major programs.

There were no audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR
section 200.516(a).

The programs tested as major programs include: U.S. Department of the Treasury,
Emergency Rental Assistance Program, ALN 21.023, Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal
Recovery Funds, ALN 21.027, U.S. Department of Agriculture, Women, Infants and
Children, ALN 10.557, U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Head Start, ALN
93.600, New Hampshire Public Utilities Company, Electrical Assistance Program, NON-
Federal.

The threshold for distinguishing Type A and B programs was $1,822,344.

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. was determined to not be a
low-risk auditee.
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FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT
None
FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAMS AUDIT

None
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_ COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM

.,‘.'-H EMPOWERING COMMUNITIES SINCE 1965

LOW INCOME HOME ENERGY ASSISTANCE PROGRAM

KEY PERSONNEL SALARIES AND ALLOCATION

PY 25

% Paid Amount
Name Job Title Salary from this | Paid from
Contract this
Contract
Kristin Bertrand | Director of Energy & Area $78,702.00 50% $39,351.00
Resource Centers
$47,053.00 50% $23,527.00

Jasmine Rivera

Fuel Assistance Program
Manager




PROFESSIONAL SUMMARY

y

Dedncated and results-driven Client Experience Manager with 3

years of experience in the addiction recovery industry, committed to

enhancing client experiences. resolving complaints, and developing

effective policies and procedures. Adept at leading and developing
_high-performing teams while collaborating with cross-functional
stakeholders to achieve organizational excellence. Skilled in data
analysis, training, and performance evaluations.

EXPERIENCE
Client Experlence Manager
November 2019 - June 2023 i Aware Recovery Care, Bedford, NH

o Led and managed a team of 15 Client Engagement Specialists in 9
states (ME, NH, MA, CT, Rl FL, IN, VA, OH} providing coaching,
supervision, and support to ensure adherence to engagement best
practices,

e

o Documented and resolved client complaints promptly, :
implementing necessary steps to address concerns and improve
overall client satisfaction.

o  Utilized Symplr to manage and track complaints, ensuring accurate
and comprehensive documentation.

o Proactively contacted clients and family members, demonstrating
empathy and support while gathering essential information to
enhance client experiences.

e Actively participated in the Quality Improvement Committee,
reporting on best practices and recommending improvements o
enhance reporting processes agency-wide.

e Tracked and analyzed complaints and client satisfaction trends,
identifying opportunities for intervention and :mplementmg data-
driven strategies for continuous improvement:

o Spearheaded implementation of a client satisfaction process,
systemati¢ally collecting and analyzing client experience data to
inform decision-making and enhance service delivery.

o Collaborated with project management, legal, and compliance
teams to develop policies and procedures focused on retaining
client engagement and optimizing the client grievance process.

o Proficient in Google and Microsoft Suites, utilizing these tools for
various reporting and-communication needs.

SKILLS

e Interdepartmental Collaboration

o Staff Management

o Customer Service

e Process Improvement

e Personnel Training and Devetopment

e Conflict Resolution Techniques



Conducted daté analysis in the EHR system, extracting valtuable
insights to inform decision-making and improve client engagement
strategies.

Interviewed and hired potential candidates for Client Engagement
Specialist roles, assessing their qualifications and fit within the
organization.

Provided comprehensive training and onboarding for new hires,
ensuring they have the necessary skills to deliver exceptional client
experiences,

Conducted 30-day and annual evaluations for team members,.
recognizing strengths and areas for improvement, and supporting
professional development initiatives.

Served as a liaison between clients and various departments within
ARC, facilitating effective communication and problem-solving to
meet client needs.

Collaborated with Client Engagement Specialists to optimize client
satisfaction and engagement through fargeted support and
interventions.

Effectively managed miscellaneous job-related duties, contributing
to the overall efficiency and success of the arganization.

Student Finance Counseler
February 2017 - November 2019 | Southern New Hampshire
University, Manchester, NH

o]

Maintaining confidentiality of student accounts per Family
Educational Rights and Privacy Act of 1974 (FERPA)}

Documented student accounts with accurate notation in regards to
financial conversations

Advised students of federal financial aid in accordance with federal
laws and regulations set by Department of Education

Resolved financial issues on student accounts utilizing a variety of
database teols, and working collaboratively with other student
facing departments

Beauty Consultant
November 2015 - November 2016 | Sephora, Manchester, NH

o

Maintained presentability of cosmetic displays with careful attention
to intended visual appeal.

Answered beauty product questions with knowledge of ingredients |
and application techniques.

Engaged customers by greeting and offering assistance with
products and services, promoting positive customer experiences.

Demonstrated product usagé by applying samples to self or
customers when appropriate.

Recommended specific cosmetic products for satisfying customers’
stated beauty needs.

Exchanged merchandise for customers and accepted returns.

Computed sales prices, total purchases, and received and processed
cash and credit payment.



Senior In-home Caregiver
May 2011 - April 2015 | Home Instead Senior Care, Manchester,

NH

<

Prepare and maintain records of client progress and services
performed, reporting changes in client condition to supervisor.

Care for individuats or families during periods of incapacitation,
family disruption, or convalescence, providing companionship, and
personal care.

Transport clients to locations outside the home, such as to
physicians' offices or en outings, using a motor vehicle.

Participate in case reviews, consulting with the team caring for the
client, to evaluate the client's needs and plan for cantinuing
services,

EDUCATION

Bachelor of Arts (B.A.) in General Studies with concentration in
Psychology

May 2021

Southern New Hampshire University, Manchester

‘Relevant Coursework

o

=]

Adolescent Development
Social Development: Child and Adolescent

Associate's in Science in Clinical Medical Assisting
May 2011
Hesser College, Manchester, NH

REFERENCES

References available upon request



KRISTIN BERTRAND

Highly motivated retail manager with over eight years of progressively-complex manageinerit experience
looking to transition‘inta the non-profit sector. Passionate about community engagement and '
committed to applying my management and leadership skills to the mission of the Community Action
Program Belknap-Merrimack Cotinties.

EXPERIENCE

JUNE 2021-PRESENT
STORE MANAGER, TREK BICYCLE, CONCORD, NH
. Responsible for hiring, training, and coaching a store team
Organize community outreach events to promote cycling initiatives
Create effective, cross-arganizational community partnerships with non-profit cycling
and other diverse organizations :

JANUARY 2023-PRESENT _
VOLUNTEER YOUTH DEVELOPMENT OFFICER, NEW ENGLAND MOUNTAIN BIKE
ASSOCIATION {NEMBA}, CENTRAL NH .
. Organize programs to introduce low-income youths to mountain biking

Create partnerships with other non-profits focused on youth engagement

Assist with all fundraising efforts for the CNH chapter

Help organize community events focused on mountain biking and trail development

Represent NEMBA at various City Council and Conservation Commission meetings

JANUARY 2015-JUNE 2021
CVS PHARMACY, A SUBSIDIARY OF CVS HEALTH

NOVEMBER 2020-JUNE 2021
COVAX PROJECT MANAGER, CVS PHARMACY, SYRACUSE, NY
. Scheduled and coordinated 320 Covid vaccination clinics in Skilled-Nursing and Assisted
living facilities throughout NY and PA, in conjunction with the Federal Pharmacy
Partnership for Lang Term Care (LTC) program developed by the CPC
Led a diverse team of 30 Pharmacists, Registered Nurses, and Pharmacy Technicians
Managed all Covid vaccine, PPE, and supply ordering

JANUARY 2020-NOVEMBER 2020
ACTING DISTRICT LEADER, CVS PHARMACY, NORTHEAST REGION
. Qversaw pharmacy and front store operations for 27 stores throughout MA, NH, and ME
Managed a P&L of 2.3 million prescriptions filled annually and $125 million annual front’
store sales
Supervised, coached, and mentored a team of 81 Pharmacy Managers, Store Managers,
and Staff Pharmacists



Ensured pharmacy compliance with state and federal laws in areas such as HIPPA,
controlled substance dispensing and recordkeeping, and hazardous waste disposal

JANUARY 2015-JANUARY 2020

STORE MIANAGER, R¥, CVS PHARMACY
Managed three progressively complex CVS.Pharmacy locations in Skaneateles, Ithaca,
and Syracuse, NY
Oversaw all Pharmacy and Front Store operations
Built and developed a diverse store team of top performers in each location
Consistently exceeded customer service and patient satisfaction targets

SPRING SEMESTER 2014-FALL SEMESTER 2015
ADJUNCT INSTRUCTOR STATE UNIVERSITY OF NEW YORK AT BINGHAMTON,
BINGHAMTON, NY
Designed two 300-level European History courses for undergraduates
Delivered lectures to 100 or more students
Developed alt course exams and assignments

EDUCATION

2010-2014
DOCTORAL CANDIDATE IN EUROPEAN HISTORY, BINGHAMTON UNIVERSITY,
BINGHAMTON, NY
Specialized in modern German History
2012: passed Comprehensive Oral Exams and completed all doctoral coursewaork to
attain Ali but Dissertation (ABD) status
2012: awarded Fulbright Doctoral Research grant for archival research in Germany

2010

M.A. EUROPEAN RISTORY, BINGHAMTON UNIVERSITY, BINGHAMTON, NY

Studied Modern European History; specialized in German History
2010-2011: elected as the Vice President of Phi Alpha Theta History Honor Society, Alpha
Theta Epsilon chapter
2009: awarded a Deutscher Akademischer Austausch Dienst (DAAD) Language Course
Grant for intensive language study in Freiburg Germany
2008: awarded full graduate tuition scholarship and assistantship

2008
B.A. IN HISTORY, MINNESOTA STATE UNIVERSITY MOORHEAD, MOORHEAD, MN

Studied history; spectalized in giobkal history

SKILLS

+  Leadership +  Customer service
Verhal and written communication +  Scheduling
Talent development +  Constant desire to learn and grow
Event coordination *  German language



